
 

Town of Weaverville 
Zoning Board of Adjustment 

Council Chambers 
October 28, 2019, 7pm 

 
Agenda 

 
1. Call to Order – Chairman Tycer Lewis. 
2. Approval of the Agenda. 
3. Approval of the Minutes from the June 10, 2019 Meeting of the Board. 
4. Public Hearing Regarding a Variance Application for the Property Commonly Known as 120 

South Main Street.  
5. Consideration of a Motion Establishing a Ruling on the Aforementioned Variance Application. 
6. Any Other Business to Come Before the Board.  
7. Adjournment. 



OVERVIEW OF ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MATTERS –                                                                            
PROVIDED AS INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT AS LEGAL ADVICE 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment almost exclusively does its work by making QUASI-JUDICIAL decisions on appeals from Zoning 
Administrator decisions, variance requests and applications for special use permits. Strict adherence to statutorily prescribed 
procedures before, during and after a hearing must be followed to ensure that constitutional due process rights of all parties are 
preserved. As rights are determined in these hearings it may be advisable for you to consult with an attorney on these matters. 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF HEARING 

The Town Staff must provide notice of the hearings.  

MAILED NOTICE – Notice of hearings must be mailed to the applicant, the owner of the affected property, and owners 
of properties located within 500 feet of the property affected. Mailings are sent first class to addresses maintained by 
Buncombe County Tax Office and must be sent at least 10 days but not more than 25 days prior to the scheduled hearing.  

POSTING OF PROPERTY – The property that is subject to an appeal, variance request or special use permit application 
must be prominently posted. This posting must be on the property affected or on an adjacent street or highway right of 
way and must also be done at least 10 days but not more than 25 days prior to the scheduled hearing.  

PUBLICATION IN NEWSPAPER –The hearing must also be advertised in a newspaper of general circulation. 

INTRODUCTION AT HEARING 

The Chairman of the Zoning Board of Adjustment will provide an introduction prior to the start of the hearing in order to make sure 
that those in attendance understand the matter to be heard, who is allowed to participate, and a general overview of the 
procedural aspects of the hearing including the burden of proof and standards the Zoning Board of Adjustment must apply.  

BURDEN OF PROOF - The person appealing a zoning administrator decision, or applying for a variance or special use 
permit has the burden of proving sufficient evidence for the Zoning Board of Adjustment to conclude that the applicable 
standards have been met. If insufficient evidence is presented, the application must be denied or the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment can continue the hearing to a later date to receive additional evidence. Once sufficient evidence has been 
presented that the standards have been met, the applicant is entitled to approval. If conflicting evidence is presented, the 
Board must determine which facts it believes are correct. 

STANDARDS - The Town’s zoning ordinance provides specific standards for the issuance of variances and special use 
permits. See separate Section on Standards. 

BOARD DISCLOSURES AND RECUSALS 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment must make sure that it is an impartial decision maker and that all communications with the Board 
on the matter prior to the hearing have been disclosed.  

RECUSAL FOR BIAS/CONFLICT OF INTEREST - Prior to the opening of the hearing, the Chairman will inquire of the 
Board members if there is any reason that they could not be an impartial decision maker. If any member has a fixed 
opinion prior to the hearing, a close familial, business or other associational relationship with an affected person, or a 
direct or indirect financial interest in the outcome he or she should not participate in that hearing, deliberation or vote. 
Alternate members of the Zoning Board of Adjustment have been appointed to fill a seat in those situations.  If there are 
members who express bias or conflict of interest then the recusals of those members would be appropriate. 



OVERVIEW OF ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MATTERS –                                                                            
PROVIDED AS INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT AS LEGAL ADVICE 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

OUTSIDE COMMUNICATION – The Chairman will also provide an opportunity for members of the Board to disclose 
any communication that has occurred prior to the hearing. Some incidental communication is common and hard to avoid. 
However, substantial communication that occurs outside of the hearing should be disclosed. 

IDENTIFICATION OF PARTIES  

Only those people who have a sufficient interest, or standing, in the outcome of matter before the Board are allowed to become a 
party and present evidence. Anyone that can show some “special damage,” or damage not common to all other persons who may 
oppose what is being requested, will have standing to contest the matter and will be a proper party. The following have standing: 

(1) Anyone that has an ownership interest in the property that is the subject of the hearing; 
(2) Anyone that has a leasehold interest in the property that is the subject of the hearing. 
(3) Anyone that has an interest in the property that is the subject of the hearing that has been created by an easement, 

restriction, or covenant. 
(4) Anyone that has an option or contract to purchase the property that is the subject of the hearing. 
(5) Anyone that is an applicant before the decision-making board. 
(6) Any other person who will suffer special damages as the result of the decision. 
(7) An incorporated or unincorporated association to which owners or lessees of property in a designated area belong by 

virtue of their owning or leasing property in that area, or an association otherwise organized to protect and foster the 
interest of the particular neighborhood or local area, so long as at least one of the members of the association would have 
standing as an individual. 

(8) The Town if the Town believes that the Zoning Board of Adjustment made a decision that it believes is inconsistent with 
the proper interpretation of an ordinance adopted by Town Council. 

OATH OF WITNESSES  

State law requires that the Zoning Board of Adjustment’s decisions be based on testimony that is given under oath. The Chairman 
will ask that anyone wishing to testify at the hearing come forward to be sworn under oath before the hearing begins.  

HEARING IS OPENED FOR THE PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE 

The hearing is conducted in order to determine the facts relevant to the matter before the Zoning Board of Adjustment. The 
decision of the Zoning Board of Adjustment must be made based on competent, material and substantial evidence in the record of 
the hearing. The Zoning Board of Adjustment’s scope is limited to applying facts to the standards set forth in the zoning ordinance. 
Any testimony as to unrelated matters is inappropriate and cannot be considered. 

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE/EXHIBITS - Examples of documents that can be entered into evidence include: the 
application, staff reports, supporting documentation, documents from witnesses, maps, photographs, videos, studies. 

FACTUAL TESTIMONY – Testimony about facts within the personal knowledge of a witness can be fully considered by 
the Zoning Board of Adjustment. Factual testimony should be limited to those facts which relate to the standards. The 
Zoning Board of Adjustment can only rely on opinions offered by qualified experts. The testimony of lay witnesses offering 
only opinions or conclusions is not considered as competent evidence on which the Board can basis its determination.  

OPINION TESTIMONY BY QUALIFIED EXPERTS – Opinion testimony should be provided only by properly qualified 
experts. North Carolina law specifically prohibits the use of non-expert testimony on how the use of a property would 
affect property values, the increase in vehicular traffic resulting from the proposed development would pose a danger to 
public safety, or any other matters that a court would require expert testimony in court. Non-expert opinions on these 
technical matters are not considered to be competent evidence upon which a decision can be made. 



OVERVIEW OF ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MATTERS –                                                                            
PROVIDED AS INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT AS LEGAL ADVICE 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

In order to preserve constitutional rights, parties have the right to cross-exam or question all witnesses. Board members are also 
free to pose questions to anyone presenting evidence.  

HEARING IS CLOSED AND BOARD DELIBERATION BEGINS 

At the close of the hearing the Board then takes an opportunity to review the evidence in light of the standards that the Board must 
apply. The Board’s review should focus on contested facts. Where conflicting evidence is presented, the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment has the responsibility of deciding how much weight to accord each piece of evidence. The Board also has the 
responsibility of determining credibility of witnesses. In its discussion the Board can consider conditions that might be imposed in 
order to bring the project into compliance with a standard. 

VOTING 

For most matters coming before the Zoning Board of Adjustment a simple majority vote is all that is needed. For variance 
applications, however, North Carolina law requires a super majority of at least 4/5. 

WRITTEN DECISIONS 

The Board’s decision must be reduced to writing; however, this is usually done at a subsequent meeting. Prior to that it is 
permissible to issue a temporary order consistent with the Board’s deliberations and vote. The written decision must determine any 
contested facts and apply the facts to the applicable standards. Staff drafts a written decision and presents it to the Board at the 
Board’s next meeting for consideration and adoption.  

APPEALS 

Anyone “aggrieved” by a decision of the Zoning Board of Adjustment can appeal a decision by filing a petition for writ of certiorari 
with the Buncombe County Superior Court within 30 days of the mailing of the written decision or the filing of that decision with the 
Board’s clerk or secretary, which is later. It is important to remember that the time is not measured from the date of the decision, 
but from the mailing of the written decision. It is also important to note that appeals are not heard by Town Council. 

STANDARDS 

The standards as adopted by the Town Council must be set forth in an unambiguous manner so that the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment can apply those standards to the facts of a particular case. This doesn’t mean that the standards must all be objective 
standards, subjective standards (such as “general welfare” and “hardship”) are permissible. 

STANDARDS FOR SPECIAL USE PERMITS 

(1) The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, 
safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare. 

(2) The special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes 
already permitted nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the neighborhood. 

(3) The establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of the 
surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 

(4) The exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at variance with the exterior 
architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already constructed or in the course of construction in the 



OVERVIEW OF ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT MATTERS –                                                                            
PROVIDED AS INFORMATION ONLY AND NOT AS LEGAL ADVICE 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

immediate neighborhood or with the character of the applicable district as to cause a substantial depreciation in the 
property values within the neighborhood. 

(5) Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or other necessary facilities have been, are being or will be provided. 
(6) Adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion 

in the public streets. 
(7) The special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it is located, except 

as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the zoning board of adjustment. 
 
STANDARDS FOR VARIANCES 
 

(1) Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of [the zoning ordinance].  
(2) The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as location, size, or topography; however, 

hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the 
neighborhood or the general public may not be the basis for granting a variance. 

(3) The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property owner.  
(4) The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of [the zoning ordinance] such that public safety is 

secured and substantial justice is achieved. 
(5) The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, building or structure which is not permitted in the zoning district in 

which the property is located. 
(6) The variance is not a request to permit a prohibited sign. 

 



 

Agenda Item 3 
Minutes 

 
 



 

 
Page 1 of 4  June 10 2019  
  Board of Adjustment Minutes 
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Minutes – Monday, June 10, 2019 

 
 

The Zoning Board of Adjustment of the Town of Weaverville met for its regularly scheduled monthly meeting 
at 7pm on Monday, June 10, 2019, in Council Chambers at Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville. 

Present: Vice Chair Cynthia Wright, Board Members Paul Clauhs, Roger Parkin, and Sylvia Valois, Town 
Attorney Jennifer Jackson and Planning Director James Eller. Absent: Chair Tycer Lewis, Alternate member 
Gene Knoefel, and Alternate Member Bob Pace. 

1. Call to Order 

In the absence of Chairman Tycer Lewis, Vice Chair Cynthia Wright called the meeting to order at 7:00pm and 
welcomed those in attendance to the meeting. The board members and staff introduced themselves.  

2. Approval of Minutes  

Board Member Clauhs made a motion to approve the minutes from the May 13, 2019, meeting of the Board as 
presented. Board Member Parkin seconded the motion and all voted in favor of approving the minutes.  

3. Evidentiary Hearing on a Request for a Sidewalk Waiver for the Property owned by MRS Land 
Development, LLC, located at 320 Merrimon Avenue 

Vice Chair Wright asked Attorney Jackson to provide an overview on how quasi-judicial hearings work. The 
following were Attorney Jackson’s statements: 

Tonight the Zoning Board of Adjustment will hold a quasi-judicial hearing on a request for a waiver of 
the sidewalk requirement. The purpose of the quasi-judicial hearing is for the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment to hear and consider pertinent facts related to the request. The Board is required to 
comply with procedural rules much like those of a trial court and to provide for the constitutional right 
to due process such as proper notice of the meeting, an impartial decision maker, sworn testimony of 
witnesses, and an opportunity for parties to be heard by allowing direct examination and cross 
examination of witnesses.  

The Board is asked to make a quasi-judicial decision which is like a court decision in several important 
ways. It requires the Board to use its judgment in applying general laws to a particular land use 
situation while ensuring the constitutional due process rights of all parties. 

Tonight’s hearing is a formalized means of gathering evidence relevant to the issues that are before 
the Board tonight. This is not an opportunity for citizens to come and just speak their minds like in a 
public hearing on a legislative matter before Town Council. The Board’s decisions can only be made 
based on competent, material and substantial evidence in the record of the respective hearings. 



 

 
Page 2 of 4  June 10 2019  
  Board of Adjustment Minutes 
 

“Competent” evidence is generally understood to mean that evidence which is legally admissible in a 
court of law. Competent evidence does not include the opinion testimony of lay witnesses as to any of 
the following: 

• Use of property in a particular way affecting the value of other property; 
• Increase in vehicular traffic resulting from a proposed development posing a danger to 

the public safety; 
• Matters about which only expert testimony would generally be admissible under rules 

of evidence applicable to trial courts. 

The burden is on the applicant to demonstrate that the application complies with the review and 
approval standards of the zoning ordinance. Once an application has been submitted and all evidence 
in support of the application has been presented, then the burden shifts to those who have standing to 
oppose the application to present evidence to the Board. Where conflicting evidence is presented the 
Board must determine the weight of the evidence and the credibility of witnesses. The Board can 
consider reasonable conditions that, if imposed, would bring a project into compliance with the 
standards set out in the zoning ordinance. 

Vice Chair Wright introduced the matter be stating that MRS Land Development, LLC, is the owner of property 
located at 320 Merrimon Avenue (Buncombe County Parcel Identification Numbers of 9732-80-6733 and 9732-
80-7768), which located in the C-2 Zoning District and is being developed for commercial use. Section 36-24(b) 
requires the construction of sidewalks for all new construction and development except for single family 
dwellings and duplexes. In accordance with Section 36-24(c)(2) the property owner has requested a waiver 
from this sidewalk requirement. This Code section grants the Board with authority to hear and decide on 
sidewalk waiver requests under the following circumstances: 

 The establishment, maintenance, or operations of the special use (as amended) will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

1. If sidewalks are scheduled to be installed as part of a state or town project within 10 years, 
then the developer may pay a fee in lieu of construction equal to 100% of the full cost of the 
sidewalk as estimated by the Town’s engineer 

2. Where existing and future (based on the potential for development in the area) pedestrian 
volumes and/or vehicles volumes are so low that the level of conflict between vehicles and 
pedestrians walking on the street is minimal. This exception may not be used where road 
geometry creates sight distance problems 

3. Where the construction of sidewalks in the findings of fact by the BOA would create greater 
harm or danger to the pedestrians.  

Vice Chair Wright declared the hearing open and began by polling the board members to see whether or not 
any members had conflicts of interest or bias that might disqualify them from serving on the Board during the 
hearing. None were reported. No board member indicated that they had had any ex parte communication with 
the applicant. No concerns were noted about the board hearing the matter were expressed. 

Vice Chair Wright noted that the applicant/property owner, MRS Land Development, LLC, through it member 
manager Mike Schoeppler, had standing to participate in the hearing, as did James Eller on behalf of the Town. 
No one else expressed a desire to be made a party to the proceeding. 



 

 
Page 3 of 4  June 10 2019  
  Board of Adjustment Minutes 
 

The following individuals were sworn in and gave testimony: James Eller, Mike Schoeppler as the 
representative for MRS Land Development, LLC, and Earl Valois.  

Mr. Eller described the application and asked that the following exhibits be entered into evidence: 

Exhibit 1-A – Affidavit of Mailing and Posting 

Exhibit 1-B – Affidavit of Publication 

Exhibit 2 – The entire meeting packet, including specifically the Affidavit of Mailing and Posting; Staff 
Report prepared by James Eller addressing the application, jurisdiction, precedent, and other matters; 
and a vicinity map.  

All exhibits were accepted into evidence without objection from any party. 

Mr. Schoeppler gave a brief overview of his request and offered to answer any questions that the Board might 
have. Mr. Eller reviewed the application and noted specifically that the Applicant owns the property located at 
320 Merrimon Avenue bearing Buncombe County  Parcel Identification Numbers 9732-80-6733 and 9732-80-
7768 and zoned C-2, and that sidewalks are required for all new commercial development. Under Town Code 
Section 36-24(c), Applicant has requested a waiver of the sidewalk requirement and the Board has jurisdiction 
to consider the request. Sidewalks do not exist on Merrimon Avenue at or near the intersection of Garrison 
Road or on Garrison Road at or near the intersection of Merrimon Avenue. Mr. Eller indicated that he was 
unaware of any plans for sidewalks along Merrimon Avenue or Garrison Road within the next 10 years. Mr. 
Eller also indicated that the closest sidewalk to the Applicant’s property is approximately 0.4 miles away at 
Creekside Village so, if required and constructed, the sidewalk would only be in front of the Applicant’s 
commercial development and is not likely to connect to any other sidewalks. It was noted that foot traffic 
along Merrimon Road is very minimal so the conflict between vehicles and pedestrians is not likely to occur on 
Garrison Road or Merrimon Avenue. Mr. Eller stated his opinion that the construction of the sidewalk in front 
of the applicant’s commercial development may actually cause greater harm or danger to the pedestrians on 
Merrimon Avenue and Garrison Road due to the abrupt beginning and ending of a sidewalk.  

The Applicant plans to open an office on the property but is allowed to use the property for any use permitted 
in the C-2 zoning district.  

While not a party and not a witness called by either party to the proceeding, Earl Valois made comments that 
suggested that sidewalks should be required for safe ingress and egress, especially in emergency situations. 
Mr. Eller indicated that the NC Building Code and the NC Fire Code governs those issues. Zoning regulations do 
require on-site parking for all commercial uses within the C-2 district. 

4. Ruling on Request for a Sidewalk Waiver for the Property owned by MRS Land Development, LLC, 
located at 320 Merrimon Avenue 

Having heard all the evidence and heard the responses to all questions asked, Vice Chair Wright asked if the 
Board had a motion concerning the matter. Based on the documentary and testimonial evidence presented 
during the hearing, Board Member Parkin made the motion to approve the requested sidewalk waiver. Board 
Member Clauhs seconded the motion and all voted in favor of approving the waiver.  



 

 
Page 4 of 4  June 10 2019  
  Board of Adjustment Minutes 
 

The Town Attorney indicated that she had a draft written order for the Board to consider and reviewed the 
same with the Board including specifically the draft findings of fact. Board Member Clauhs made a motion to 
adopt the order as presented by the Town Attorney, Board Member Parkin seconded the motion, and all board 
members voted to adopt the written order.  

5. Approval of Written Order for Special Use Permit Amendment for 16 Monticello Village Drive 

Board Member Clauhs made a motion to approve the proposed written order amending the special use permit 
for 16 Monticello Village Drive that was heard and decided by the Board at its May 13, 2019, meeting. Board 
Member Valois seconded the motion. All voted in favor and the order was adopted.  

6. Other Business  - None 

7. Adjournment 

At approximately 7:25 pm, Board Member Parkin made a motion to adjourn, which was seconded by Board 
Member Clauhs. All voted in favor and the meeting was adjourned.  

 
_______________________________ 

Tycer Lewis, Chair 
Board of Adjustment 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Deputy Town Clerk 
 



 

Agenda Items 4&5 
Variance Application – 120 South Main 

 
 
 

 



1 
 

ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
MEETING SHEET FOR OCTOBER 28, 2019 

 
VARIANCE REQUEST 
 

INTRODUCTION:  Hazel S. Reese is the owner of property located at 120 South Main 
Street that has a Buncombe County Parcel Identification Number of 9742-25-8178 and is 
zoned R-1. Through her Attorney-in-Fact, Judy Williams, she has applied for a minimum 
lot width variance.   

JURISDICTION: Sec. 36-328(2) authorizes the BOA to grant variances when hardships 
would result from carrying out the strict letter of the terms of the zoning ordinance. 
Variances require a 4/5 vote of the board. 

 
STANDARDS FOR VARIANCES:  

1. Unnecessary hardship would result from the strict application of the zoning 
ordinance. It is not necessary to demonstrate that, in the absence of the 
variance, no reasonable use can be made of the property. 

2. The hardship results from conditions that are peculiar to the property, such as 
location, size, or topography. Hardships resulting from personal circumstances, as 
well as hardships resulting from conditions that are common to the 
neighborhood or the general public, may not be the basis for granting the 
variance. 

3. The hardship did not result from actions taken by the applicant or the property 
owner. The act of purchasing property with  knowledge that circumstances exist 
that may justify the granting of a variance shall not be regarded as a self-created 
hardship.  

4. The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of the 
zoning ordinance such that public safety is secured and substantial justice is 
achieved. 

5. The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, building or structure which 
is not permitted in the zoning district in which the property is located. 

6. The variance is not a request to permit a prohibited sign.  
 

QUESTION FOR DELIBERATION: Does the record include competent, relevant and 
substantial evidence that the variance requested by the property owner meets the 
standards and should therefore be granted?  
 



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Proposed Variance at  
120 South Main Street  

Prepared October, 2019

Sources:  Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Introduction to the Property 

The subject parcel, commonly known as 120 South Main Street, consists of .85 acres as shown on 
Buncombe County tax records. The property may be found just south of the intersection of Phipps, 
South Main and West Streets. The property is also in close proximity to Weaverville Elementary School 
whose roofline is visible in the lower left hand corner of the following map. The plat of record is also 
attached hereto which shows the deeded interior lot lines not depicted on the GIS image. It is the two 
interior lots which front Phipps Street shown as lots 26 & 27 on the plat that the application seeks to 
convert into buildable lots.  
 

Question of Jurisdiction 

Section 36-351(b)(2) tasks the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment to consider requests for variances where 
the minimum lot area or lot width are more than 20% 
below the minimum standard set by the zoning district 
in which the property is located. The R-1 zoning district 
requires a minimum lot width of 100 feet and the plat 
of record provided shows a lot width of 54 feet for the 
two interior lots which front Phipps Street.  

 
Based upon the aforementioned variables, it is the belief and understanding of staff that the Zoning 
Board of Adjustment is duly authorized to consider a variance application for this property. 
 
Previous Decisions 

Similar variance requests to convert a nonconforming lot of record into a buildable lot have been heard 
by the Zoning Board of Adjustment. The Board granted a variance for substantially similar applications 
for the properties commonly known as 124 and 126 South Main Street in July of 2013 and 84 West 
Street in May of 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 





Hazel S. Reese by and through
 Attorney in Fact







10.1.19

Staff has reviewed the statements made in Section D related to the burdon of proof 
and can generally attest to the facts provided by the applicant

$250 10.1.19

10.28.19


















	Zoning Board of Adjustment Agenda and Packet for Monday, October 28, 2019.pdf
	ZBA Agenda 10.28.19.pdf
	ZBA-Summary-of-Procedures.pdf
	PUBLIC NOTICE OF HEARING
	INTRODUCTION AT HEARING
	BOARD DISCLOSURES AND RECUSALS
	IDENTIFICATION OF PARTIES
	OATH OF WITNESSES
	HEARING IS OPENED FOR THE PRESENTATION OF EVIDENCE
	CROSS-EXAMINATION
	HEARING IS CLOSED AND BOARD DELIBERATION BEGINS
	VOTING
	WRITTEN DECISIONS
	APPEALS
	STANDARDS

	Agenda Item 3 Cover Page.pdf
	Board of Adjustment 6.10.19.pdf
	Agenda Item 4&5 Cover Page.pdf
	BOA - Meeting Sheet - Variance - October 2019.pdf
	120 South Main Staff Report.pdf
	Variance Application and Agent Authorization.pdf

	Affidavit of Publication - 120 S Main - ZBA 10.28.19.pdf
	Affidavit of Mailing and Posting - ZBA - 120 South Main.pdf

